[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Planning Committee
25 May 2021
Time

2.00 pm

Public Meeting?

YES

Type of meeting

Regulatory

Venue

Council Chamber, 4th Floor, Civic Centre, St Peter's Square, Wolverhampton,
WV1 1SH

Membership
Members of the Planning Committee
Quorum for this meeting is four Councillors.

Information for the Public
If you have any queries about this meeting, please contact the Democratic Services team:
Contact
Tel/Email
Address

Donna Cope
Tel 01902 554452 or email donna.cope@wolverhampton.gov.uk
Democratic Services Civic Centre, 1st floor, St Peter’s Square,
Wolverhampton WV1 1RL

Copies of other agendas and reports are available from:
Website
Email
Tel

http://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk
democratic.services@wolverhampton.gov.uk
01902 550320

Please take note of the protocol for filming, recording, and use of social media in meetings, copies of
which are displayed in the meeting room.
Some items are discussed in private because of their confidential or commercial nature. These reports
are not available to the public.

If you are reading these papers on an electronic device you have saved the Council £11.33 and
helped reduce the Council’s carbon footprint.

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda
Part 1 – items open to the press and public
Item No.

Title

1

Apologies for absence

2

Declarations of interest

3

Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 8)
[To approve the minutes of the previous meeting as a correct record]

4

Matters Arising
[To consider any matters arising]

5

21/00048/OUT - Land behind 2 to 30 Eccleshall Avenue, Wolverhampton
(Pages 9 - 14)
[To consider the planning application]

6

21/00158/FUL - 30 Wrottesley Road, Wolverhampton, WV6 8SF (Pages 15 - 18)
[To consider the planning application]

7

21/00053/FUL - 17 St Judes Road, Wolverhampton. WV6 0EB (Pages 19 - 22)
[To consider the planning application]

8

20/01346/FUL and 20/01324/LBC - "Canalside", Land at Union Mill Street,
Horseley Fields, Wolverhampton (Pages 23 - 34)
[To consider the planning application]

9

20/01588/FUL - The Dormers, Finchfield Gardens, Wolverhampton, WV3 9LT
(Pages 35 - 40)
[To consider the planning application]

10

21/00320/FUL - The Broadway Public House, Lichfield Road, Wolverhampton,
WV12 5UJ (Pages 41 - 44)
[To consider the planning application]

11

21/00314/FUL - Land Adjacent 91 Cranmore Road, Wolverhampton, WV3 9NN
(Pages 45 - 50)
[To consider the planning application]

Agenda
Page 2 of 2

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda Item No: 3

Planning Committee
Minutes - 23 March 2021
Attendance
Councillors
Cllr Keith Inston (Chair)
Cllr Anwen Muston (Vice-Chair)
Cllr Alan Butt
Cllr Celia Hibbert
Cllr Clare Simm
Cllr Mak Singh
Cllr Jonathan Yardley
Cllr Olivia Birch
Cllr Roger Lawrence
Cllr Phil Page
Cllr Wendy Thompson

Employees
Stephen Alexander
Tracey Homfray
Jenny Davies
Colin Noakes
Charlotte Morrison
James Dunn
Jennifer Nicholds
Nyhiem Howl
Tim Philpot
Donna Cope
Jaswinder Kaur
Stuart Evans

Head of City Planning
Planning Officer
Section Leader Planning
Senior Planning Officer
Section Leader Planning
Tree Officer
Planning Officer
Trainee Planning Officer
Professional Lead - Transport Strategy
Democratic Services Officer
Democratic Services Manager
Solicitor

Part 1 – items open to the press and public
Item No.

1

Title

Apologies for absence
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Martin Waite.

Page 3

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

2

Declarations of interest
Councillor Mak Singh declared a non-pecuniary interest in respect of agenda item 6.

3

Minutes of the previous meeting
Resolved:
That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 12 January 2021 be confirmed as a
correct record and signed by the Chair subject to the following amendment in respect
of Minute 6:
Councillor Thompson felt that the proposals had an unacceptable effect on a
neighbouring property and was frustrated that Members could not access the site
during their visit.

4

Matters Arising
There were no matters arising.

5

20/01296/FUL and 20/01297/LBC - Rock House, Old Hill, Tettenhall,
Wolverhampton, WV6 8QB
The Committee considered a report regarding 20/01296/FUL and 20/01297/LBC Part change of use of a Grade II listed building to create 8
apartments with associated internal and external works.
Mr Alan Parkin addressed the Committee and spoke in opposition to the
application.
Colin Noakes, Senior Planning Officer, responded to the statements made and
explained that the proposals afforded more than enough onsite parking. Tim Philpot,
Professional Lead - Transport Strategy, agreed with the Senior Planning Officer and
stated that the proposals were acceptable.
Mr Nick Chapman addressed the Committee and spoke in support of the application.
A Member of the Committee had concerns regarding overdevelopment and
insufficient parking however most Members felt that the proposals were acceptable
and welcomed the application.
Councillor Page moved the recommendations and Councillor Butt seconded the
recommendations.
Resolved:
That Planning Permissions 20/01296/FUL and 20/01287/LBC be granted subject to
the following conditions:
 Design of new windows to be agreed with the LPA
 External materials to be agreed
 Prior to occupation car parking spaces to be provided

Page 4

Minutes
Page 2 of 5

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]




6

Prior to occupation electric charging point to be installed
Design of cycle parking to be approved

21/00026/FUL - 12, Yew Tree Lane, Wolverhampton, WV6 8UF
The Committee considered a report regarding 21/00026/FUL - Proposed Double
Storey Side and Rear Extension and Loft Conversion.
Following a request from the Chair of Planning Committee it was agreed that one of
the conditions listed at Paragraph 11.1 of the report would be amended as follows:


All of the property to be rendered.

Mr Gregg Davies addressed the Committee and spoke in opposition to the
application.
Jennifer Nicholds, Planning Officer, responded to the statements made and
explained that the proposals were acceptable.
Mr Jake Sedgemore addressed the Committee and spoke in support of the
application.
Councillor Page moved the recommendations and Councillor Butt seconded the
recommendations.
Resolved:
That planning permission 21/00026/FUL - be granted subject to the following
conditions:
 Build in line with Tree plan to protect the preserved tree
 Remove Permitted Development rights to convert the garage
 All of the property to be rendered
7

20/01519/RC - Aldi, Goldthorn Hill, Wolverhampton, WV2 3HP
The Committee considered a report regarding 20/01519/RC - Material Amendment to
recently approved planning application 19/01048/FUL to revise the proposal to retain
the existing Loading Bay and associated delivery ramp, at the rear of the store, and
to extend the store at the rear to provide a meeting Room, together with relocation of
external services plant area.
Mr David Ryley addressed the Committee and spoke in opposition to the application.
Tracey Homfray, Planning Officer, responded to the statements made and confirmed
that Environmental Health had no objections to the application.

Page 5

Minutes
Page 3 of 5

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Mr Scott Bryden addressed the Committee and spoke in support of the application.
Councillor Page moved the recommendations and Councillor Muston seconded the
recommendations.
Resolved:
That planning permission 20/01519/RC - be granted subject to conditions as included
on the previous approved planning application 19/01048/FUL.
8

20/00944/FUL - 44 Redhouse Road, Wolverhampton, WV6 8ST
The Committee considered a report regarding 20/00944/FUL - First floor side and
single storey front extensions.
Jenny Davies, Section Leader Planning, reported that since the agenda had been
published, the following condition had been added:


The proposed first floor side facing on-suite window to be obscurely glazed.

Mr Marek Paul addressed the Committee and spoke in opposition to the application.
Jenny Davies, Section Leader Planning, responded to the statements made and
explained that the proposals were acceptable.
Daljit Bharya addressed the Committee and spoke in support of the application.
Councillor Page moved the recommendations and Councillor Inston seconded the
recommendations.
Resolved:
That planning permission 20/00944/FUL - be granted subject to the following
conditions:
 Matching materials
 Prevent side facing windows in the west facing elevation
 The proposed first floor side facing on-suite window to be obscurely glazed.
9

21/00165/TR - 6 Church Hill Drive, Wolverhampton, West Midlands WV6 9AS
The Committee considered a report regarding 21/00165/TR –
06/00467/TPO (A14) - T1 - Horse Chestnut - Crown reduce via the 'drop-crotching'
method to reduce the Height and Northeast - Southwest spread of the tree by no
more than 2.5 metres. T2 - Oak - Crown reduce via the 'drop-crotching' method to
reduce the Height and spread of the tree by no more than 1.5 metres. T3 - Sycamore
- Crown reduce via the 'drop-crotching' method to reduce the Height and spread of
the tree by no more than 2.5 metres. T4 - Sycamore - Crown reduce via the
'dropcrotching' method to reduce the Height and spread of the tree by no more than
2.5 metres.

Page 6

Minutes
Page 4 of 5

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Councillor Inston moved the recommendations and Councillor Page seconded the
recommendations.
Resolved:
That planning permission 21/00165/TR - be granted subject to standard conditions.
10

21/00100/FUL - Equipment south of U S A M Trading Estate, Wood Lane,
Wolverhampton
The Committee considered a report regarding 21/00100/FUL - The removal of an
existing 20m high Phosco Phase 1 Monopole and the replacement with an 18.60m
high Phosco Phase 4.5 Monopole c/w a new 3.4m high headframe; associated
equipment and development ancillary thereto.
Nyhiem Howl, Trainee Planning Officer, reported that an objecting neighbour had
requested to speak at the meeting but was unable to do so due to IT issues.
Councillor Muston moved the recommendations and Councillor Inston seconded the
recommendations.
Resolved:
That planning permission 21/00100/FUL - be granted subject to the following
conditions:
 The development hereby permitted shall be in accordance with the particulars
submitted within the application – 21/00100/FUL.
 Structure to be removed and the land restored should it no longer be required.
 Subject to the condition that any apparatus or structure provided in
accordance with that permission must, at the expiry of the relevant period, be
removed from the land and the land restored to its condition before the
development took place.
 This development shall commence before the expiration of three years from
the date of this permission. Reason: - Pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004 (PCPA).

Page 7

Minutes
Page 5 of 5

This page is intentionally left blank

This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Agenda Item No: 5

Planning Committee
Tuesday, 25 May 2021

Planning application no.

21/00048/OUT

Site

Land Behind 2 to 30 Eccleshall Avenue, Wolverhampton

Proposal

Proposed Residential Development for one detached dwelling

Ward

Oxley

Applicant

Mr Poonia

Cabinet member with lead
responsibility

Cabinet Member for City Economy

Accountable Director

Richard Lawrence, Director of Regeneration

Originating service

Planning

Accountable employee

Tracey Homfray
Tel
Email

Senior Planning Officer
01902 555641
tracey.homfray@wolverhampton.gov.uk

1.0

Summary recommendation:

1.1

Grant.

2.0

Application site

2.1

This application site is a part of a triangular parcel of land which is nestled behind
properties, fronting Eccleshall Avenue, Churchfield Road, and Beech Road. The land is
accessed off Eccleshall Avenue, via an existing vehicular/pedestrian access. The land
has been divided off into segments, some of which have garages and sheds. There is a
Western Power Sub Station located along the shared access. The surrounding area is
predominantly residential.

3.0

Application details

3.1

This is an outline application for one five-bedroom detached dwelling, accessed via the
existing shared vehicular/pedestrian access. Matters for approval are access, layout and
scale. Landscaping and appearance are reserved matters.

4.0

Relevant policy documents

4.1

National Planning Policy (NPPF)

Page 9

Page | 1

This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Black Country Core Strategy (BCCS)
Wolverhampton Unitary Development Plan (UDP)
5.0

Publicity

5.1

Eight letters of objection:
















Highway/Pedestrian Safety due to the narrow nature of the access and
surrounding highway
Disruption to neighbouring properties, noise from traffic and building.
Loss of Privacy
Loss of outlook
Increase in volume of traffic
Impact on the character of the residential area
Loss of Natural Beauty/Wildlife
Restrict Access to Other Parcels of Land
Provides Security/Access to neighbouring properties
Greenfield not Brownfield
Out of character as all properties are semidetached no detached properties
Access not wide enough especially for larger vehicles – Problems with fire service
etc
Access/Egress on Eccleshall Avenue not wide enough, risk to damage of cars
parked on the highway
Insufficient access to drainage/electricity
Health/Safety to users of the access

18 Letters of Support:







Help prevent fly tipping
Help prevent anti-social behaviour
Increase security
Reduce disturbance due to mis use of garages
Tidy up an overgrown piece of land
Prevent vermin.

6.0

Consultees

6.1

Transportation – No Objections subject to conditions.

6.2

Coal – No Objection

6.3

Western Power –
Our network off Eccleshall Road provides over 100 properties with an electricity
connection and approximately of 20% of those properties are registered with us as
having an occupant that is medically sensitive to interruptions to their electricity supply.
Our equipment has been established in accordance with current site conditions and there

Page 10

Page | 2

This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

is a concern that the change of use proposed will increase traffic over our underground
cables, which may potentially impact on the integrity and security of our network affecting
our ability to maintain supplies in accordance with our statutory obligations.
Remedial measures may be available but we are concerned that these could constrict
our ability to expand our network in support of the predicted increase in the use of
electric vehicles and make it more expensive to install replace and maintain our
underground cables when we are bound by legislation to run an economic network.
6.4

Ecology
The Report is satisfactory and no further Ecological Assessments or Surveys are
required before consideration is given to granting outline planning consent. The
recommendations on Mitigation and Enhancements contained in the Assessment should
be followed by the developer.
Detailed hard and soft landscaping plans will be required.

7.0

Legal implications

7.1

There are no legal implications arising from this report KR/13052021/D.

8.0

Appraisal

8.1

The key issues in this case are urban design, highway/pedestrian safety and the impact
on neighbours’ amenities, wildlife, and utilities.

8.2

Urban Design
The surrounding area is predominantly residential; therefore, the principle of residential
development is acceptable.

8.3

The triangular piece of land has been divided up and owned by separate people, some of
the land is used for garages, storage and parking of vehicles, one parcel of land has
been left unattended, to overgrow naturally, another appears to be used for some form of
commercial activity. Therefore, there is no formal designation for these private parcels of
land.

8.4

The layout displays a large detached property, located along the western boundary of the
plot adjacent, an overgrown parcel of land. The layout provides a sufficient amount of
private garden land and parking to support the proposed dwelling and its occupants.
Access to the dwelling would be along a shared access drive. The layout would have no
detrimental impact on the established pattern of development, so would therefore, be in
keeping with the character and appearance of the surrounding area.

8.5

Highway Safety
The existing access, is currently used by both pedestrians and vehicles, in connection
with the various parcels of land and their usage. The development, which would be for
one five bedroom dwelling, should not generate an increase in vehicle trips that would

Page 11

Page | 3

This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

have a significant impact on Eccleshall Avenue or the wider highway network. Therefore,
the access would be suitable for a residential development of this size.
8.6

Access for larger vehicles during the development stage would be difficult. This is due to
the narrow nature of the access. However, this could be addressed by condition for a
“Construction Method Statement”, which would be submitted for assessment/release.
The statement would need to address access, by submitting a plan of action, which
would prevent any larger vehicles accessing the site, protecting the access. The agent
has confirmed that all deliveries would have to be made by suitable smaller vehicles
which currently access the site. They have also suggested a “Banksman” at the entrance
to the site to supervise access, in relation to Eccleshall Avenue, and to organise
deliveries outside peak hours.

8.7

The concerns of Western Power have been considered, however, the volume of traffic
associated with a dwelling of this size, would not be significantly different to what
currently exists, and together with the construction method statement, would mitigate any
concerns with respect to the under ground lines, and larger vehicles accessing the during
development.

8.8

Without physical changes to the existing access, any vehicle larger than a Transit Van
type vehicle would be unlikely to enter \ exit the access road, especially if \ when cars are
parked on Eccleshall Avenue. This would need to be considered by any future residents \
occupiers. The access road is private, but it should be constructed so that mud and dirt
are not brought out onto the highway network. Therefore, suitable replacement surfacing
for the access road would be necessary, especially in light of the concerns raised by
Western Power, this can be conditioned as part of the decision.

8.9

With reference to Refuse Vehicles, and Fire Service, accessing the site. This can also
be addressed, by residents putting their own bins out for collection on Eccleshall Avenue,
which is normal practice for surrounding dwellings, and in the case of a fire, internal
sprinkler systems can be incorporated into the design as part of the building regulation
application.

8.10

8.11

Neighbour Amenities
The proposed dwelling would be located adjacent to the western boundary with a
neighbouring parcel of land and set in from the boundaries with neighbouring residential
gardens. Although the dwelling would be clearly apparent, from neighbouring properties,
due to the detachment from the boundaries, and a suitable window to window
relationship, the development would not appear overbearing or oppressive. Restrictions,
for future development could also be conditioned in order to protect neighbouring
amenities.
Neighbours have raised concerns over disturbance during development, and from
vehicles accessing the site, along with security. Disturbance during development can be
conditioned, so that development takes place during suitable times of the day. Vehicle
movement generated by a property of this size, would not be significantly different to
what currently exists, so there would be no excessive increase in disturbance from
vehicles approaching or leaving the site. With respect to security, the site is currently

Page 12

Page | 4

This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

accessed by owners of the site, and possibly other members of society. Development
would be enclosed by suitable boundary treatment, preventing direct access, and once
occupied the development would also provide natural surveillance, providing further
security.
8.12

The development site is currently an untidy piece of land, with some neighbours
welcoming development, as it would tidy the area up, and prevent vermin. It is hoped
that once development is completed, it would deter any antisocial activity taking place, in
the vicinity.

Wildlife
8.13 Wildlife has been considered via the submission of an Ecological Appraisal dated 6th
January 2021, subject to the recommendations on Mitigation and Enhancements
contained in the Assessment, being carried out by the developer, there would be no
detriment to the wildlife in this area. The Mitigation/Enhancements can be conditioned as
part of the proposal.
9.0

Conclusion

9.1

The application has satisfactorily demonstrated that the development can be
accommodated, without any significant detriment to the character/appearance of the
area, highway/pedestrian safety, neighbouring amenities, and wildlife. Therefore, subject
to the inclusion of conditions, the proposal is acceptable and in accordance with the
Development Plan.

10.0

Detail recommendation

10.1

Grant Planning Permission subject to the following conditions:















Submission and Implementation of landscaping including access drive
Sustainable Drainage
Levels
Boundary Treatment
Tree Protection
Materials
External Lighting
Parking provision as shown, and to be provided before occupation/and maintained
as parking
Turning Area as Shown and to be provided before occupation/and maintained as
a turning area.
Electric Charging Point to be provided before occupation.
Hours of Operation During Construction
Construction Management Statement
Restrict future development.
Ecological Appraisal

Page 13

Page | 5

This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 14

Page | 6

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda Item No: 6

Planning Committee
Tuesday, 25 May 2021

Planning application no.

21/00158/FUL

Site

30 Wrottesley Road, Wolverhampton, WV6 8SF

Proposal

Proposed replacement dwelling.

Ward

Tettenhall Regis;

Applicant

Mr Credali

Cabinet member with lead
responsibility

Cabinet Member for City Economy

Accountable Director

Richard Lawrence, Director of Regeneration

Originating service

Planning

Accountable employee

Jennifer Nicholds Planning Officer
Tel
01902 555699
Email
Jennifer.Nicholds@wolverhampton.gov.uk

1.0

Summary recommendation

1.1

Grant subject to conditions.

2.0

Application site

2.1

The site is currently made up of a detached dwelling, garage and various outbuildings.
The surrounding area is predominantly residential with a mixture of dwelling types of
different designs and scales. The property is within the Tettenhall Neighbourhood Plan
area and borders the Tettenhall Green Conservation area.

3.0

Application details

3.1

The proposal is to demolish the existing dwelling and rebuild a larger one on the same
plot.

3.2

The property has six bedrooms and five off-street parking spaces, two of which are
located in a rear detached garage.

Page 15

Page | 1

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

4.0

Relevant policy documents

4.1

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

4.2

Wolverhampton Unitary Development Plan (UDP)

4.3

Black Country Core Strategy (BCCS)

4.4

Tettenhall Neighbourhood Plan

5.0

Publicity

5.1

We have received one objection from a neighbour who wished to speak at committee to
raise concerns around loss of daylight, scale, noise and general disturbance.

6.0

Consultees

6.1

Tree Officer: No objections subject to conditions

6.2

Highways Officer: No objections subject to conditions

7.0

Legal implications

7.1

There are no legal implications arising from this report KR/11052021/A

8.0

Appraisal

8.1

The property is positioned to match the existing building line in relation to 28a Wrottesley
Road, the roof height and pitch has been designed to relate to the properties either side
and would therefore be acceptable in terms appearance in the street scene.

8.2

The size of the property although larger is appropriate in terms of scale and mass in
relation to the plot size. There is a mix of property sizes on the street, so the proposed
dwelling is not out of character with the surrounding area. The materials are appropriate
for the location.

8.3

The length of the two storey rear element has been reduced and the distance between
neighbouring properties results in the proposal now being acceptable in terms of
neighbour amenity in relation to mass, scale, overbearing impact, light and privacy.

8.4

The private amenity space is large enough to meet the required standard.

8.5

The proposed number of parking spaces meets Wolverhampton Council’s parking
standard and a condition to ensure the materials on the drive leading to the garage will
mitigate noise and protect neighbour amenity.

8.6

The proposed dwelling has been designed to ensure the protected trees will remain in
place and will not be damaged during the building work. A condition to comply with the
tree management plan has been recommended.

Page 16

Page | 2

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

9.0

Conclusion

9.1

The proposed dwelling would not have an unreasonably negative impact on the character
of the area. The design, scale and appearance of the development will respect and relate
to the plot and the road as a whole. Sufficient parking and amenity space is provided to
support the property.

10.0

Detail recommendation

10.1

Grant planning subject to the following conditions:


Build in line with Tree plan to protect the preserved trees



Remove Permitted Development rights for new outbuildings or conversion of
garage



Materials for drive to mitigate noise



EVCP



Construction management plan

Page 17

Page | 3

This page is intentionally left blank

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda Item No: 7

Planning Committee
Tuesday, 25 May 2021

Planning application no.

21/00053/FUL

Site

17 St Jude’s Road, Wolverhampton, WV6 0EB

Proposal

Proposed detached annexe to existing hostel to provide six twobedroom and two one-bedroom accommodation (Sui Generis
Hostel).

Ward

Park

Applicant

Mrs Popinder Kaur

Cabinet member with lead
responsibility

Cabinet Member for City Economy

Accountable Director

Richard Lawrence, Director of Regeneration

Originating service

Planning

Accountable employee

Stephen Alexander Head of City Planning
Tel
07771 836400
Email
Stephen.Alexander@wolverhampton.gov.uk

1.0

Summary recommendation

1.1

Grant

2.0

Application site

2.1

The site is to the side of a refuge for women in a large Victorian building on the corner of
Riches Street and St Jude’s Road in a residential area. There is an oak tree towards the
front of the site and an existing access gate onto St Jude’s Road. It is run by a local
charity that provides bedsit accommodation with staff support for vulnerable women and
children.

3.0

Application details

3.1

The charity supports women and children vulnerable to abuse and homelessness across
Wolverhampton. St Jude’s refuge was setup in 2005. The proposed development will
help to address a shortfall in this type of supported accommodation across the city. The
new apartment building will take similar families providing much needed accommodation
in a safe location. Since the existing facility opened in 2005, the applicant states there
has been no disruption to the neighbours in this location and the local community

Page 19

Page | 1

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

remains highly supportive of the refuge and the families and women it supports. In the
case of this development, the charity has consulted the neighbours surrounding the site
before submitting the application.
3.2

The proposal is an annex to the main building containing eight apartments to provide
additional accommodation for vulnerable women and children. The new apartment
building is to be built on an area of open ground within the curtilage. The application
proposals seek to infill the gap in the street and provide a building which compliments the
original house. The proposed building is set back behind the oak tree, is three storeys
adjacent to the large existing house and steps down to two storeys towards the two
storey houses along St Jude’s. A gap of seven metres has also been retained between
the new building and number 18 St Jude’s Road.

3.3

In the design of the building the proximity of the rear gardens of the adjacent houses on
Riches Street have also been considered. The bedroom windows to the proposed
apartments have been designed to be angled away from the neighbours’ gardens.

4.0

Relevant policy documents

4.1

Wolverhampton’s development plan.

5.0

Publicity

5.1

Three objections have been received on the following grounds:


The impact of the size of the proposed development on the outlook from the
properties in Riches Street;



Loss of privacy;



Loss of green space, overdevelopment and lack of garden space;



More bins being left in the street;



Parking and congestion;



Loss of quiet enjoyment of property and private life contrary to the Human Rights
Act.

6.0

Consultees

6.1

Transportation – no objection.

6.2

Police – no objection.

7.0

Legal implications

7.1

There are no legal implications arising from this report KR/12052021/C

8.0

Appraisal

Page 20

Page | 2

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

8.1

The new annexe associated with 17 St Jude’s Road will provide an important community
service. The building has been carefully designed to relate to its setting. The gable
features, window proportions and rhythms relate to the host building. The design, scale
and mass of the building is acceptable in the street scene.

8.2

The site is within a residential context and there are neighbouring properties to both the
rear and side. 18, St Jude’s Road has windows facing the application site. The gardens
of 66-69 Riches street are angled away from the application site and the new
development will be readily visible from the rear of some of those gardens. The
development has been designed to respond to these constraints to reduce issues of
overlooking, loss of light and privacy. Whilst the outlook from the gardens will change, the
building will not be overbearing and, being to the north-west, will not overshadow the
gardens. The windows of the prosed buildings have been angled to reduce overlooking.
The massing and position of the proposals would be appropriate and there would be no
significant adverse impact on neighbour amenity or privacy that would justify a reason for
refusal.

8.3

There will be no increase in staff numbers and the clients do not have vehicles. There will
be no adverse impacts on highway safety.

8.4

The existing oak tree on the frontage will be retained and protected.

8.5

The proposed levels vary and there is a sunken drive. It is important that exact details of
the proposed levels are submitted to protect neighbours’ amenities and the oak tree as far
as reasonably possible. These can be required by condition.

9.0

Conclusion

9.1

All of the relevant issues, including all those raised by the neighbours, have been
carefully considered and the proposal is acceptable, in accordance with the development
plan.

10.0

Detail recommendation

10.1

Grant subject to any necessary conditions including:


Materials



Landscaping



Boundary treatments



Hours of construction



Levels

Page 21

Page | 3

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]



Drainage



Tree protection



Limitation on use to that applied for



Bin and cycle storage



No further windows in side and rear facing elevations.

Page 22

Page | 4

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Page 23

Page | 5

This page is intentionally left blank

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda Item No: 8

Planning Committee
Tuesday, 25 May 2021

Planning application no.

20/01346/FUL and 20/01324/LBC

Site

“Canalside”, Land at Union Mill Street, Horseley Fields

Proposal

Comprehensive redevelopment of the Union Mill and Lower
Horseley Fields site, including demolition and works in a
conservation area, for the change of use and provision of
residential dwellings, and non-residential floor space at 16 /
16a Union Mill Street, car parking, landscaping and other
associated works.

Ward

Heath Town;

Applicant

Union Mill Street Wolverhampton SPV Ltd.

Cabinet member with lead
responsibility

Cabinet Member for City Economy

Accountable Director

Richard Lawrence, Director of Regeneration

Originating service

Planning

Accountable employee

Phillip Walker
Tel
Email

Senior Planning Officer
07970316918
phillip.walker@wolverhampton.gov.uk

1.0

Summary recommendation

1.1

Delegated authority to grant applications 20/01346/FUL and 20/01324/LBC subject to
receipt of acceptable drainage and ecology details, no overriding objections from
outstanding consultees, conditions and a s106 agreement.

2.0

Application site

2.1

This is a 2.01 ha. site, which is bounded by Horseley Fields (A454) to the south, the
Birmingham Canal to the north and east, residential development to the west and a
telephone exchange building and yard to the south west. On the opposite side of the
canal, to the north, is the former Crane Foundry site and the junction with the Wyrley and
Essington Canal. On the opposite side of Horseley Fields is Wulfruna Coal Yard and
other commercial development.

Page 25

Page | 1

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

2.2

Parts of the site are 3 metres higher than the canal, with walling and retaining walls
abutting the canal and at the north western part of the site, the former Cheese and Butter
Warehouse.

2.3

The site is partially located within the Union Mill conservation area, covering the north
western and the south eastern areas of the site.

2.4

The north western part of the site includes historic former mill and industrial buildings,
including the former Cheese and Butter Warehouse (Grade II listed); and 16A Union Mill
Street (Grade II listed). There are three locally listed buildings within the same area: 16B
Union Mill Street; and two buildings known as the slip dock (Units 9-18). There are other
buildings, some of which are vacant, and others used for employment purposes,
including vehicle repairs.

2.5

Historically the remainder of the site contained the Edward Vaughan Stamping Works,
Shakespeare Iron Foundry and the Griffin Works, amongst other industrial operations.
The majority of the buildings within this part of the site were demolished approximately
twenty years ago, with the exception of a modern, brick and profiled steel clad, single
storey building. This part of the site has been used by Dunton Environmental Limited
since 2016 as a waste treatment hub. Dunton Environmental Limited has temporary
planning permission to operate a waste transfer station on the site, but they are required
to vacate the site, remove all plant and equipment and complete the required site
remediation works by 18.09.2021.

2.6

Vehicular access is from Union Mill Street. There is also a vehicular access from the
A454.

3.0

Application details

3.1

Applications for planning permission and listed building consent have been submitted.

3.2

20/01346/FUL - 366 dwellings, comprising 359 apartments and seven houses, which will
be a mix of 1, 2 and 3 bedroomed properties. 266 sq.m. of flexible non-residential floor
space within 16 and 16a Union Mill Street, comprising Class E Commercial, Business
and Service uses and Class F.2 Local Community uses. 16 Union Mill Street would be
used as a site management office.

3.3

Ten new buildings, ranging from two to six storeys are proposed. The buildings would be
constructed predominately from brick, glazing and modern cladding systems.

3.4

Three existing historic buildings would be retained, including the former Cheese and
Butter Warehouse and slip dock buildings, which would be converted for residential use.
16a Union Mill Street would also be retained. 16b Union Mill Street would be demolished
and replaced with a modern, three storey residential building.

Page 26

Page | 2

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

3.5

The layout of development follows the historic fan like arrangement of the Union Mill site.
Simple rectilinear building footprints are proposed, and the designs are contemporary
and modern but draw inspiration from the historic buildings within the area. There would
be new pedestrian routes, including from the existing canal side path which currently
terminates at the north-western corner of the site. The building line to the north pulls back
to create new public spaces and public realm and in doing so allows for improved
connectivity and views to and from the canal and offering a place for recreation and
relaxation. The smaller scale buildings would be located within the north western part of
the site, although the exception to this is a new build apartment block (labelled “new build
four”) which is six storeys.

3.6

Although a bridge across the canal to the former Crane Foundry site is not proposed,
there is sufficient space to provide one in the future.

3.7

Private, semi-private and public landscaping, including new pedestrian improvements
and spaces around the canal are proposed. Some of the buildings include balconies and
roof gardens.

3.8

Vehicle access to the north western part of the site would be from Union Mill Street. Also,
a one-way system into and out of the site from A454 Horseley Fields is proposed. A
further emergency access is shown from A454 at the south eastern end of the site.

3.9

278 secure cycle spaces and 88 car parking spaces (with 10% E.V charging and 2no car
club spaces) are proposed. The proposals include a resident car sharing club which
includes two vehicles and will be managed by the management company.

3.10

Boundary treatments to A454 Horseley Fields includes soft landscaping, and fencing.

3.11

The development is proposed to be constructed in four phases. The first phase of
development would comprise works within the north western part of the site, off Union
Mill Street. The three later phases (2, 3 and 4) would follow, with the final phase (4)
comprising an area of land at the south-eastern part of the site.

3.12

20/01324/LBC proposes partial demolition works and the alteration, extension and reuse
of the former Cheese and Butter Warehouse and 16a Union Mill Street, to allow for
residential uses (within the Cheese and Butter Warehouse) and non-residential uses
(within 16a Union Mill Street) including Class E Commercial, Business and Service uses
and Class F.2 Local Community uses.

4.0

Recent Planning history

4.1

20/00786/RC. Proposed variation of condition 3 of planning permission 15/00305/FUL
(waste treatment hub and site remediation) to allow for the continued use of the site as a
waste treatment hub and the carrying out of site remediation works, until 18.09.2021.
Granted 26.01.2021.

Page 27

Page | 3

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

4.2

15/00305/FUL. Waste treatment hub and site remediation. Granted 18.09.2015.

5.0

Relevant policy documents

5.1

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

5.2

The Development Plan (UDP)
Wolverhampton Unitary Development Plan (UDP)
Black Country Core Strategy (BCCS)
Wolverhampton City Centre Area Action Plan

6.0

Publicity

6.1

Two representations of support and one objection have been received. Comments
summarised as follows:
 This redevelopment proposal will be good for Wolverhampton and will create a much
more positive first impression of the City for those visiting or just passing through on
the train;
 The proposals may improve the health and welfare of existing residents;
 Concern about possible disturbance from construction works;
 The application has not demonstrated that there would be adequate residential
amenity for future residents.
 The proposals are likely to generate noise and other form of complaints against
adjoining businesses which if upheld could unacceptably disrupt effective operation of
nearby businesses;
 Recommend that further noise assessments and details of noise mitigation measures
for the proposed dwellings are submitted to demonstrate acceptable levels of amenity
for future residents and to show that the proposals would not be harmful to the
operation of surrounding businesses;
 The Council are required to consult the HSE as part of the planning application
process under the COMAH/hazardous substances regulations.

7.0

Consultees

7.1

Historic England - no objection subject to acceptable details in respect of external
materials, sections, large scale architectural details and external material sample panels,
to ensure high quality design finishes.

7.2

Environmental Health - no objection subject to conditions including construction
management plan, contaminated land remediation, plant and machinery, hours of
demolition and construction, bin stores and refuse collection management, noise and air
quality mitigation.

Page 28

Page | 4

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

7.3

Transportation - no objection subject to planning conditions, requiring a financial
contribution of £6,000 towards an assessment and improvement to the existing parking
restrictions, waste management plan, submission of an acceptable car park and car
share club management plan, agreement and implementation of a right-hand turn lane
on Horseley Fields A454 into the site.

7.4

Environment Agency – No objection subject to conditions including contaminated land
remediation and submission of verification reports.

7.5

Victorian Society – Broadly supportive of the proposals and keen to see the conservation
and reuse of the listed buildings. However they are concerned about the demolition of the
locally listed building at 16B Union Mill Street and its replacement building.

7.6

Severn Trent Water – No objections subject to a condition requiring sustainable
drainage.

7.7

West Midlands Fire Service – No objection subject to detailed comments in respect of the
fire safety.

7.8

Network Rail – No objection and would like to see the provision of good cycle and
walking routes to the station.

7.9

Canal and Rivers Trust – No objection but make comments as follows:
 Drainage details, external lighting, improved signage to and on the towpath,
construction environmental plan management plan, surveys and assessments to
ensure that the canal washwall is protected, and site remediation should be
conditioned;
 Request a financial contribution of £30,000 towards improvements to Lower Horseley
Fields access from A454, to be secured through a s106 agreement;
 Ecology survey should be extended;
 Recommend an improved design for the junction of the pedestrian ramp with the
water’s edge at the north-western corner of the site;
 Recommend omitting the gates at the north-western corner of the site. Alternative
solutions to secure the site at this position should be considered, for example through
the management company and provision of external lighting.
 Recommend mooring facilities including electricity, water and Wifi utilities provision are
installed to the waters edge.

7.10

Staffordshire County Council (flood risk / drainage comments) – request amendments to
flood risk and drainage proposals.

7.11

Police – Object and state that the layout of development is too permeable, and some car
parking areas are not overlooked, with communal seating areas likely to attract antisocial
behaviour. It is recommended against pedestrianisation of the canal side and suggest
making this development into two separate developments; Union Mill area being a culde-sac and the remaining land area having restricted vehicle and pedestrian access. All

Page 29

Page | 5

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

gable ends to include windows for surveillance and cycle stores to be with apartment
blocks.
7.12

Health and Safety Executive Planning Advice – The development does not intersect a
pipeline or hazard zone. HSE Planning Advice does not have an interest in this site.

8.0

Legal implications

8.1

The legal implications arising from this report are set out below SE/13052021/E.

9.0

Appraisal

9.1

The main issues in this case are:
 The principle of the development proposal
 Design and impact on heritage assets
 Access and parking
 Environmental health considerations
 Resident Amenity
 Crime and safety
 S106 obligations

9.2

9.3

Principle of development
Wolverhampton City Centre Area Action Plan Policy CA4 Canalside Quarter identifies
this site as within Horseley Fields and Union Mill Street development area (Site
Reference 4m). It states that housing-led mixed use development is appropriate. The
principle of the development proposal is therefore acceptable.
Design and impact on heritage assets
A large part of the application site is within the Union Mill Conservation Area and includes
the former Cheese and Butter Warehouse (Grade II); and 16A Union Mill Street (Grade
II). There are three locally listed buildings within the same area: 16B Union Mill Street;
and two buildings known as the slip dock (Units 9-18).

9.4

The character of the conservation area is largely determined by former mill and canal
dock buildings, predominately constructed from brick and closely related to the canal.
The proposed alterations and new uses, as well as the erection of new buildings and
public realm will enhance and better reveal the significance of the heritage assets
affected.

9.5

There is no objection to the demolition and alterations to the listed buildings, which
involve minimal loss of historic fabric and enhancement, through careful alteration and
reuse. The place-making emphasis given to the Union Mill area in terms of the layout of
proposed new buildings and the improvements to public realm would enhance the
conservation area.

Page 30

Page | 6

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

9.6

The locally listed 16B Union Mill Street is in a poor structural condition and the
replacement building would be of a good quality design and make a positive contribution
to the setting of the listed buildings and conservation area. The loss of 16B Union Mill
Street, can be accepted.

9.7

The layout, scale and massing of the new build elements respond to the character of the
area. The use of brick work, glazed panels and metal cladding would provide visual
interest. The careful consideration to roof designs, has resulted in a roof scape that
creates a distinctive character. The new buildings respond appropriately to the canal side
location and setting of the heritage assets and the Conservation Area, as required by
Section 12 of the NPPF.

9.8

9.9

9.10

9.11

Access and parking
This is a highly accessible location, with excellent public transport links and acceptable
car parking arrangements. There are no objections from the Council’s Transportation
Officers subject to planning conditions including the implementation of an appropriately
designed right-hand turn lane from A454 Horseley Fields before the implementation of
the 215th dwelling at the site.
Environmental health considerations
The application is accompanied by noise and air quality assessments and this
demonstrates that there would be acceptable amenity for future residents subject to
conditions in respect of noise attenuation, including glazing specification, mechanical
ventilation and monitoring, and air quality mitigation including electric vehicle charging
points. The careful design of the development and use of conditions mean that it is not
anticipated that the use of this site for residential purposes would have adverse impacts
for the operation of surrounding businesses.
Resident Amenity
Some of the buildings and properties are located close together. However, the design of
the development will ensure good levels of privacy for residents, outlook from and
sunlight to properties. This is to be achieved by the use of dual aspect layouts,
particularly at above first floor level; carefully located windows so as to minimise windows
being located directly opposite each other; screen panelling; along with appropriate
window designs in terms of size, shape and type; siting of buildings so as to minimise
opportunities for overlooking.
A small row of three new houses (labelled “new build one”) are proposed to replace an
existing boundary wall and the former workshop buildings which are positioned along the
north-western boundary of the site, and to the rear of 16 and 16a Union Mill Street.
Although the three houses would cover less area than the existing former workshops,
they would be marginally taller than them at the boundary of the site. There would be
some impact in terms of outlook from, and sunlight and daylight to the land at the rear
and habitable windows serving existing ground and first floor apartments of the
neighbouring development. However, there would be no windows in the elevation facing
onto the existing flats, as is currently, and the impact of the new dwellings upon the
amenities enjoyed by the occupiers of those neighbouring properties would not be

Page 31

Page | 7

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

dissimilar to that which they currently enjoy, and as such there would not be an
unacceptable impact upon existing residential amenity.

9.12

9.13

9.14

Crime and safety
The development has been carefully designed to deter crime, improve surveillance,
connectivity and vibrancy, and all communal amenity and car parking areas will be
covered by CCTV.
The design of the buildings is such that there will be good levels of surveillance
throughout the development and this will be assisted by the pedestrianisation of the
canal side.
S106 obligations
In accordance with adopted planning policy the following are required:
 25% affordable housing
 Any necessary highway works including financial contribution of £6,000 for traffic
regulation orders
 £200,000 Public Open Space Contribution to be spent on improvement, provision and
maintenance of canal access at Lower Horseley Fields off A454, and open space at
Hay Basin / Victoria Basin and East Park

9.15

The applicant is seeking a reduction in Section 106 obligations on the grounds of a lack
of financial viability.

9.16

Should it be demonstrated that the development would not be sufficiently viable to fund
all the requirements, it would be justified to reduce affordable housing and public open
space contribution requirements, commensurate with the lack of viability, in order to
support early development.

9.17

It is recommended that any reduction applies on a pro-rata basis to all dwellings that are
ready for occupation within three years from the date that a lack of viability is
demonstrated with the full amount applying on a pro-rata basis to all those that are not.

10.0

Conclusion

10.1 This development proposal would make a vital contribution to the regeneration of the City
of Wolverhampton, and the delivery of the Canalside Quarter. The proposals would
create a sustainable residential community close to the City Centre and the design
makes the most of the canal side setting, including high quality buildings and public realm
improvements, with good connections to surrounding services and facilities providing an
attractive place for people. The proposals would preserve the character and appearance
of the listed buildings and the Union Mill Conservation Area and are in accordance with
the development plan.

Page 32

Page | 8

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

11.0

Detail recommendation

11.1

Delegated authority to the Director of Regeneration to grant planning application
20/01346/FUL subject to:
1. Completion of a Section 106 Agreement to include:
For the whole development:
 Highway works, including £6,000 for traffic regulation orders
If viable:
 25% affordable housing
 £200,000 Public Open Space Contribution to be spent on improvement, provision
and maintenance of Lower Horseley Fields canal access and open space at Hay
Basin / Victoria Basin and East Park
If not viable:
A reduction in affordable housing and public open space contribution, commensurate
with the lack of viability with the reduction applying on a pro-rata basis to all dwellings
ready for occupation within three years of the date that a lack of financial viability is
demonstrated and the full requirement applying on a pro-rata basis to all those that
are not ready for occupation at that time.
2. Receipt of an acceptable ecology report;
3. No overriding objections from outstanding consultees;
4. Receipt of acceptable amended drainage proposals;
5. Any necessary conditions to include:
 Phasing / Construction Phasing Plan
 Boundary treatments, including retaining walls
 External materials including hard surfacing materials
 Provision of a right-hand turn lane from A454 Horseley Fields, the details of which
are first to be agreed with the local planning authority and the approved scheme
provided in advance of the occupation of 215th dwelling (to include dwellings off
Union Mill Street) at the site
 Contaminated land remediation
 Drainage
 Demolition and Construction Method Statement (to include hours of demolition
and construction)
 Environmental Management Plan
 Levels
 Car park and car sharing club management plan
 Landscaping
 External Materials
 Large scale architectural details
 Sample panels of the external materials

Page 33

Page | 9

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]





















11.2

Cycle parking and pedestrian routes, including a management plan for the use
and opening and closing of any access gates within the site and at key entrance
points
Cycle storage
Bin stores and waste management plan
Plant and machinery details
Electric vehicle charging points
External lighting
Provision and retention of car parking
Travel Plan
Implementation in accordance with noise report: Acoustic glazing and ventilation.
Internal noise monitoring to take place prior to occupation of any dwelling.
10% Renewable Energy
Noise insulation for all plant and heating equipment
Hours of construction and demolition
Targeted recruitment and training
Management company for external communal areas
Implementation of landscaping
Implement in accordance with ecology recommendations
Provision of signage to and on the towpath
Surveys and assessments for the canal wash wall
Remove permitted development rights for the installation of windows in the rear
(west facing) elevations of the three proposed houses (labelled “new build one”)

20/01324/LBC – Grant subject to any necessary conditions including external materials
and large-scale architectural details.

Page 34

Page | 10

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Page 35

Page | 11

This page is intentionally left blank

This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Agenda Item No: 9

Planning Committee
Tuesday, 25 May 2021

Planning application no.

20/01588/FUL

Site

The Dormers, Finchfield Gardens, Wolverhampton, WV3 9LT

Proposal

Single storey and two storey rear extensions

Ward

Park;

Applicant

Mr and Mrs Blakemore

Cabinet member with lead
responsibility

Cabinet Member for City Economy

Accountable Director

Richard Lawrence, Director of Regeneration

Originating service

Planning

Accountable employee

Alisha Paul
Tel
Email

Planning Officer
01902 550348
Alisha.Paul@wolverhampton.gov.uk

1.0

Summary recommendation

1.1

Grant, subject to conditions.

2.0

Application site

2.1

The application site is located in Finchfield Gardens, a narrow private road accessed
from Finchfield Road, within in the Bantock House Conservation Area (BHCA). Finchfield
Gardens forms a distinct character area within the BHCA and is typified by large
detached dwellings set in spacious plots. The dwellings within Finchfield Gardens are of
varied style and design started by Major Hutchinson Smith in the 1920s, which was later
added to by subsequent architects.

2.2

The application dwelling is a large detached house built in a Dutch colonial style, set in a
spacious plot, set back from the road.

3.0

Application details

3.1

The proposed development includes single storey rear and two-storey rear extensions of
a contemporary design. The proposed first-floor rear extension projects 4.5 metres at its
furthest projection and 4 metres at its shortest projection from the rear wall of the original
dwelling. The first-floor extension on the north side overhangs the ground floor extension
by approximately 0.75 metres.

Page 37

Page | 1

This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

4.0

Relevant policy documents

4.1

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
The Development Plan:
Wolverhampton Unitary Development Plan (UDP)
Black Country Core Strategy (BCCS)

5.0

Publicity

5.1

Representations from 11 households were received and the material planning objections
are summarised below:





5.2

Proposed design, scale, and materials of the development would harm the historic
character of the existing dwelling
Harmful visual impact of the development
Adverse impact to the street scene and views into the site
Fails to preserve or enhance the character and setting of the conservation area.

Following re-consultation on amended plans, 4 representations were received and are
summarised as follows:




Harmful impact to the historic character of the existing dwelling based on the
proposed design, scale and materials
Adverse impact to the street scene and views into the site
Harmful impact to the character and setting of the conservation area

6.0

Consultees

6.1

Urban Design and Conservation Officer – No objections.

7.0

Legal implications

7.1

The legal implications arising from this report are set out below KR/14052021/G.

8.0

Appraisal

8.1

The main concerns about this development are the proposed design and materials and
the impact of the development on the character of the BHCA.

8.2

Although the proposed design and materials of the proposed first-floor rear extension are
contrasting and contemporary in appearance in comparison to the existing dwelling, this
would create a clear break and help protect the legibility of the original dwelling from the
new additions to the property.

8.3

The extensions would be broken down by their design, including the extensive use of
glazing. The proposed design and materials align with those of the existing dwelling. The

Page 38

Page | 2

This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

proposal would not be out of scale with or disproportionate to the existing dwelling or
surrounding properties which are varied in design and not of a uniform size.
8.4

The single storey element of the proposal is a flat roof extension that extends 3.8 metres
from the rear wall of the existing dwelling and is set 3.5 metres away from the boundary
and will not cause any adverse impacts to neighbour amenity.

8.5

The proposed first-floor extension was amended to set the first-floor back to project 4.5
metres from the rear wall of the existing dwelling (at its furthest projection). The first-floor
extension will be set 6.5 metres from the boundary of 10 Finchfield Gardens, and 5.5
metres from the boundary of 12 Finchfield Gardens. As the application dwelling is sited
on a spacious plot, the first-floor rear extension would be located approximately 25
metres from the rear boundary of the site.

8.6

The application site boundary is shared with several properties in Finchfield Gardens, but
due to the size of the plot and scale of the development in relation to surrounding
properties and gardens, these properties will not be detrimentally affected by the
development. There is an acceptable degree of distance between the proposed
development and surrounding dwellings, therefore it would not reduce the outlook, result
in an overbearing or obtrusive impact to neighbours, or cause harm to the character and
appearance, or views in to or out of the BHCA.

8.7

All parts of the development are proposed to the rear of dwelling and will not be clearly
seen from the street. The proposed scale and mass of the development would not affect
the spacious character and setting of the application site. The proposal would therefore
preserve and enhance the character and appearance of the BHCA.

8.8

It is worth noting that application 19/01105/FUL for Tudor Villa was allowed on appeal.
This property was located on the north side of Finchfield Gardens in the BHCA.
Application 19/01105/FUL proposal included contemporary two-storey side and rear
extensions which contrast from the historic character of the existing property. The
planning inspector concluded that the proposal although sizeable and contemporary in
appearance would help protect the legibility of the original dwelling and would not harm
the important characteristics of the conservation area. The inspector stated the proposal
would not affect the spacious appearance of the appeal site and thus would enhance and
preserve the character and appearance of the BHCA.

9.0

Conclusion

9.1

The proposed development is acceptable in terms of its appropriate design, scale and
mass and would not cause adverse impacts to the amenities of neighbouring properties.
The contrasting design and materials proposed create a clear break and help identify the
original historic features from the new additions to the property. The proposal would
preserve the spacious character and appearance of the BHCA. The proposal is in
accordance with the policies of the development plan.

Page 39

Page | 3

This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

10.0

Detail recommendation

10.1

Grant planning permission, subject to the following conditions:
 Submission of proposed materials;
 Proposed window on the first-floor north side elevation to be obscurely glazed and
fixed;
 Proposed rooflights on side elevations to be fixed (non-opening);
 No additional windows on the side elevations (other than those shown on the
proposed plans).

Page 40

Page | 4

This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 41

Page | 5

This page is intentionally left blank

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda Item No: 10

Planning Committee
Tuesday, 25 May 2021

Planning application no.

21/00320/FUL

Site

The Broadway Public House, Lichfield Road, Wolverhampton,
WV12 5UJ

Proposal

Proposed new external patio area.

Ward

Wednesfield North;

Applicant

Mr Gary Briggs

Cabinet member with lead
responsibility

Cabinet Member for City Economy

Accountable Director

Richard Lawrence, Director of Regeneration

Originating service

Planning

Accountable employee

Jennifer Nicholds
Tel
Email

Planning Officer
01902 555699
Jennifer.nicholds@wolverhampton.gov.uk

1.0

Summary recommendation

1.1

Grant subject to conditions

2.0

Application site

2.1

The site is a 1930’s public house which is locally listed. There is a large car park and
existing outdoor seating areas. It is surrounded by residential family homes.

3.0

Application details

3.1

The proposal is for a new patio covered by a timber frame pergola with clear roof,
lighting, windbreaks and planters to be used as a seating area.

4.0

Relevant policy documents

4.1

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

4.2

Wolverhampton Unitary Development Plan (UDP)

4.3

Black Country Core Strategy (BCCS)

5.0

Publicity

Page 43

Page | 1

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

5.1

We have received 6 objections highlighting the following concerns:


Loss of parking spaces (including disabled) which would lead to parking on grass
verges and on nearby streets



Increase in traffic causing highway safety concerns



Noise from customers



Disturbance from external lights



Litter

6.0

Consultees

6.1

Highways Officer: No objections

7.0

Legal implications

7.1

There are no legal implications arising from this report KR/12052021/B

8.0

Appraisal

8.1

The loss of car parking spaces and potential increase in customers would not result in an
unacceptable impact on highway safety. New disabled parking bays have been created
to replace those that will be lost

8.2

The use of the land is not changing. This is a public house with an existing outdoor area,
customers can already be served and consume alcoholic beverages in this area,
therefore the construction of a patio and pergola would not have an unreasonable impact
on neighbour amenity in terms of noise and disturbance because it is unlikely that this
will lead to more intensified use. It is the structure itself which requires permission rather
than any change of use

8.3

Materials used in the proposal are sympathetic to the locally listed building and would not
have a negative impact in the terms of visual amenity.

9.0

Conclusion

9.1

The proposed structure would not have an unreasonable negative impact on the
character of the area. The design, scale and appearance of the development will respect
the Locally Listed Building. The structure will not cause a significant increase of noise
and disturbance to neighbouring properties as the land is already in use as a public
house

10.0

Detail recommendation

10.1

Grant planning subject to the following conditions:


Restrict luminance levels of external lighting



EVCP

Page 44

Page | 2

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Page 45

Page | 3

This page is intentionally left blank

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda Item No: 11

Planning Committee
Tuesday, 25 May 2021

Planning application no.

21/00314/FUL

Site

Land Adjacent 91 Cranmore Road, Wolverhampton, WV3 9NN

Proposal

Erection of 2 three-bedroom semi-detached properties.

Ward

Park;

Applicant

Mr M Ward

Cabinet member with lead
responsibility

Cabinet Member for City Economy

Accountable Director

Richard Lawrence, Director of Regeneration

Originating service

Planning

Accountable employee

Vijay Kaul
Tel
Email

Senior Planning Officer
01902 553791
Vijay.kaul@wolverhampton.gov.uk

1.0

Summary recommendation

1.1

Grant subject to conditions.

2.0

Application site

2.1

The 367 square metre site is a former car park area to a group of flats fronting Tettenhall
Road, which has now been abandoned and fenced off.

2.2

It sits at the end of a run of traditional dwellings built in the Victorian period, directly
opposite the site are terraced dwellings. Also, in the applicant’s ownership are 117-123
Tettenhall Road, which have been converted to flats, adjoin the eastern boundary and sit
higher in land level. The application site is located within Tettenhall Road Conservation
Area.

3.0

Application details

3.1

The application proposes the erection of two three-bedroom semi-detached houses.

3.2

Two vehicular access points would be created for each dwelling from Cranmore Road,
leading to two off-street parking space per dwelling. Landscaping will be introduced
within the site and fencing along part of the boundary of 117 Tettenhall Road will be
replaced with a brick wall.

Page 47

Page | 1

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

3.3

A Parking Capacity survey accompanies the planning application.

4.0

Relevant policy documents

4.1
4.2

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
The Development Plan
Wolverhampton Unitary Development Plan (UDP)
Black Country Core Strategy (BCCS)

4.3

Renewable and Low Carbon Energy SPD (September 2012)

5.0

Publicity

5.1

The application was advertised by direct neighbour notification, a site notice and
newspaper advert. Representation has been received from six neighbours and
summarised as follows:


In principle no objection to properties being built.



Land is currently used by flats at 117-123 Tettenhall Road.



Development will increase parking demand, already a struggle to park close to
home. Congestion on Cranmore will cause safety issue or congestion



Capacity data in accompanying parking survey is theoretical, not does not apply to
real-life day-to-day parking, and doesn’t take into account changes in flat rentals.



Suggested available parking nearby on The Beeches, Parkdale East and Parkdale
West are private property or on streets which have limited parking already, and
A41 includes a cycle lane.



Electric charging points to be installed on Cranmore Road will lose further onstreet parking.



Can on-street bay, parking permits be considered?



Concern about impact of construction traffic.



Impact on local ecology

6.0

Consultees

6.1

Highways: No objection subject to conditions.

6.2

Environmental Health (Land Contamination): No objection.

7.0

Legal implications

7.1

The legal implications arising from this report are covered below. SE/13052021/F.

Page 48

Page | 2

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

8.0

Appraisal

8.1

The key issues






Principle of development
Character and appearance of Conservation Area
Highways and Parking
Residential amenity
Ecology

Principle of development
8.2

The proposed dwellings would occupy an area of land which was formerly a car park, the
accompanying Design and Access Statement confirms this it is no longer in operation
and is currently fenced off.

8.3

The development would make effective use of previously developed land and would
provide two residential units, helping to boost the supply of housing in the area. The
principle of residential development on this site is acceptable.

Character and appearance of Conservation Area
8.4

The new dwellings would be built to a density of 54 dwellings per hectare (dph), which is
considered appropriate for this area.

8.5

The character of Tettenhall Road Conservation Area is derived from the late 19th and early
20th century houses, largely detached and semi-detached, red brick, three-storey villas
arranged in a linear layout along a main trunk road.

8.6

The proposed site sits to the back of this linear development. The continuation of two storey
built form in the defined frontage, with development that has a traditional design form and
use of brick, tile and render would be assimilated within the established street scene. The
replacement of fencing with an extended brick wall on the boundary of 117 Tettenhall Road
would be an improvement.

8.7

In accordance with section 72 (1) Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990, the development would therefore preserve the character or appearance of the area.

Highways and Parking
8.8

The applicant has confirmed that the application site no longer serves the flats at 117-123
Tettenhall Road, only one resident at these premises has raised concern about its loss.
Furthermore, it is evident that the close proximity to local facilities and highly accessible
public transport provision does facilitate lower car ownership for flat occupiers.

Page 49

Page | 3

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

8.9

The limited increase in parking demand arising from displacement of vehicles that could
currently park on-street in front of the application site (approximately 3 spaces), would not
amount to an unacceptable impact upon highway safety. It remains likely that the
availability of unrestricted on-street parking on Cranmore Road and in the local area, would
continue to be available to meet the demands of existing residents’ parking.

8.10

Parking demand created by the proposal would be accommodated entirely within the
application site. The Highways Officer confirming two parking spaces per dwelling is
acceptable, meeting the Council’s technical standards.

8.11

It would be necessary to include a condition requiring the submission of a construction
management plan, which will include delivery times to avoid peak traffic hours, unloading
of deliveries methodology, construction vehicle and staff parking. A condition is also
required for provision of an electric charging point per dwelling.

8.12

The proposal would not result in an unacceptable impact to highway safety.

Residential amenity
8.13

There would be a distance of at least 13.5m between the rear elevations of the flats at
117 and 119 Tettenhall Road and the side elevation of the nearest proposed dwelling.
These flats sit on a higher land level and almost perpendicular to the application site. The
side elevation of the nearest proposed dwelling to 91 Cranmore Road would sit between
3.3m to 4.2m from the boundary and would not obstruct windows in the side elevation of
a rear two storey wing. No harm would therefore arise to adjacent occupiers.

8.14

Each new dwelling would be provided with sufficient private amenity space for future
occupiers to enjoy.

Ecology
8.15

A condition is required to implement ecological enhancements, which could include the
provision of a bat and bird box for each dwelling.

9.0

Conclusion

9.1

The proposed development is acceptable and in accordance with the development plan.

10.0

Detail recommendation

10.1

That planning application 21/00314/FUL is granted subject to the following conditions:









External materials
Levels
Construction Management Plan (inc delivery hours, unloading, parking)
Drainage
Landscaping
Ecological enhancement
Boundary treatment visibility splays / H markings

Page 50

Page | 4

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]








Existing redundant dropped kerbing replaced with full height kerbing
Implement access and parking
Boundary treatments
Electric charging points
Remove PD rights for rear extensions and dormers
Remove PD for installation of side elevation windows at first floor level.

Page 51

Page | 5

This page is intentionally left blank

